
City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Agenda 

Page 1 
-  
A 

 City of Sonoma Planning Commission 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting of June 12, 2014 -- 6:30 PM 

Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West 

Sonoma, CA  95476 
Meeting Length:  No new items will be heard by the Planning Commission after 10:30 PM, unless the Commission, by 
majority vote, specifically decides to continue reviewing items. If an item is not heard due to the length of the meeting, the 
Commission will attempt to schedule a special meeting for the following week. If a special meeting is necessary, potential dates 
will be established at the close of this meeting, and a date set as soon as possible thereafter. 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Chair, Mathew Tippell 
 
 
    

Commissioners: Gary Edwards 
                             Robert Felder  
                             Mark Heneveld 
                             Matt Howarth 
                             Chip Roberson  

Bill Willers  
James Cribb (Alternate) 

  
Be Courteous - TURN OFF your cell phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: Presentations by audience members on items not appearing on the agenda. 
MINUTES: Minutes from the meeting of May 8, 2014. 
CORRESPONDENCE 

ITEM #1 – PUBLIC HEARING 

REQUEST: 
Consideration of a Temporary Use 
Permit to hold the annual zucchini car 
race outdoors on the grounds of the 
Sebastiani Winery on Friday, August 1, 
2014. 
  
Applicant/Property Owner: 
Sonoma Valley Certified Farmers 
Market/Foley Family Wines, Inc. 
 
Staff:  Rob Gjestland 

Project Location: 
389 Fourth Street East 
 
General Plan Designation: 
Wine Production (WP)  
 
Zoning: 
Planning Area: Northeast Area 
 
Base: Wine Production (W) 
Overlay: Historic (/H) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve with conditions. 
 
CEQA Status: 
Categorically Exempt 
 

ITEM #2 – PUBLIC HEARING 

REQUEST: 
Consideration of an Exception from the 
fence height standards to construct a 
section of 10-foot tall replacement 
fencing along the side (west) boundary 
of a residential property.  
  
Applicant/Property Owner: 
Michael Larbre/Michael & Rita Larbre 
 
Staff:  Rob Gjestland 

Project Location: 
222 West Spain Street 
 
General Plan Designation: 
Low Density Residential (LR)  
 
Zoning: 
Planning Area: Vallejo District 
 
Base: Low Density Residential (R-L) 
Overlay: Historic (/H) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve with conditions. 
 
CEQA Status: 
Categorically Exempt 
 

CALIFORNIA REPUBLIC

SE
A

L
O

F

THE CITY OF SO
N

O
M

A

CA LIF O R NIA
FO U N D E D 1823



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Agenda 

Page 2 
ITEM #3 – PUBLIC HEARING 

REQUEST: 
Consideration of a Use Permit allowing 
conversion of a mixed-use building into 
two vacation rentals as an adaptive 
reuse of an historic structure. 
  
Applicant/Property Owner: 
Leonard Tillem/Leonard Tillem & 
Laura Olsen 
 
Staff:  Rob Gjestland 

Project Location: 
162-166 West Spain Street 
 
General Plan Designation: 
Medium Density Residential (MR)  
 
Zoning: 
Planning Area: Downtown District 
 
Base: 
Medium Density Residential (R-M) 
Overlay: Historic (/H) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Commission discretion. 
 
CEQA Status: 
Categorically Exempt 
 

ITEM 4 – STUDY SESSION 

REQUEST: 
Study session on a proposal to 
construct a 7-unit Planned 
Development on a 0.86-acre site. 
  
Applicant/Property Owner: 
Caymus Capital 
 
Staff:  David Goodison 

Project Location: 
800 West Spain Street 
 
General Plan Designation: 
Medium Density Residential (MR) 
 
Zoning: 
Planning Area: Northwest Area 
 
Base: 
Medium Density Residential (R-M) 
Overlay: None 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Provide direction to applicant. 
 

 
ISSUES UPDATE 
COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
I do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board on June 6, 2014. 
 
CRISTINA MORRIS, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 
 
Rights of Appeal: Any decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council. Appeals must be filed 
with the City Clerk within fifteen (15) calendar days following the Planning Commission’s decision, unless the fifteenth day 
falls on a weekend or a holiday, in which case the appeal period ends at the close of the next working day at City Hall. Appeals 
must be made in writing and must clearly state the reason for the appeal. Appeals will be set for hearing before the City Council 
on the earliest available agenda. A fee is charged for appeals.  
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business referred to on 

the agenda are available for public inspection the Monday before each regularly scheduled meeting at City Hall, 

located at No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA, (707) 938-3681.  Any documents subject to disclosure that are provided 

to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Planning Commission regarding any item on this agenda after 

the agenda has been distributed will be made available for inspection at the Administrative Assistant office, No. 

1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA during regular business hours. 

 

If you challenge the action of the Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues 

you or someone else raised at the public hearing described on the agenda, or in written correspondence delivered 

to the Administrative Assistant, at or prior to the public hearing. 

 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 

meeting, please contact the City Clerk (707) 933-2216. Notification 48-hours before the meeting will enable the 

City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  

 



May 8, 2014, Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF SONOMA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
May 8, 2014 

 
Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma, CA 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Chair Tippell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll Call: 
 

Present: Chair Tippell, Comms. Felder, Howarth, Edwards, Heneveld, Willers, 
Roberson, Cribb (Alternate) 

Absent:  
 
Others 
Present:  

 
 
Planning Director Goodison, Administrative Assistant Morris  

 
Chair Tippell stated that no new items would be heard after 10:30 p.m. unless the Planning 
Commission so decides. Any decisions made by the Planning Commission can be appealed 
within 15 days to the City Council. He reminded everyone to turn off cell phones and pagers. 
Comm. Howarth led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: No Public Comments 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Comm. Howarth made a motion to approve the minutes of April 10, 
2014. Comm. Roberson seconded. The motion carried 5-0-2 (Comms. Edwards and Heneveld 
abstained). 

CHANGES TO AGENDA ORDER: None 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: None  
 
 
Item #1 – Public Hearing – Appeal of the interpretation of planning staff regarding 
whether the issuance of a Type 67 ABC License applied for by the Cottage Inn & Spa, 
which would allow the sale of bottles of wine to registered guests of the establishment 
but not to the general public, is consistent with the Development Code. 
 
Applicant/Property Owner: Jon Diederich and Joseph Costello 
 
Planning Director Goodison presented staff’s report.   
 
Chair Tippell opened the item to public comment. 
 
Joseph Costello, appellant/neighbor, contends that the issuance of a Type 67 license would 
authorize a retail use, an activity that is not allowed in the Medium Residential zone.  He noted 
that ABC board public noticing did not specify that the sale of wine to guests of the Cottage Inn 



May 8, 2014, Page 2 of 4 

would be limited to bottles of wine. In his opinion, there might be unintended consequences 
associated with the license that would be difficult to monitor.  
 
Zac Weinberg, the owner of The Cottage Inn & Spa, interprets the issue as a disagreement over 
whether or not serving wine to guests constitutes an intensification of use. The purpose is to 
provide wine for his guests for celebratory occasions, which is not a new activity since guests 
already have the option of enjoying wine that they bring themselves. He is not interested in 
pursuing the hypothetical scenarios presented by Mr. Costello.  
 
Comm. Heneveld confirmed with Mr. Weinberg that bottles of wine would only be sold to 
registered guests of the facility.  
 
Chair Tippell closed the item to public comment. 
 
Chair Tippell confirmed with Planning Director Goodison that planning staff has received no 
complaints about the operation of the Cottage Inn either recently or in conjunction with the new 
owner.  
 
Comm. Edwards stated that in his experience the proposed service reflects a normal 
expectation that a guest might have and raises no issues of use intensity or compatibility. 
 
Comm. Howarth agreed with Comm. Edwards, stating that in his view this allowance does not 
constitute an intensification of use.  
 
Comm. Willers stated the he sees no impact associated with the allowance provided by the type 
67 permit and he noted that the finding that this permit type was consistent with the zoning of 
the property does not mean that other permit would be found to be consistent.   
 
Chair Tippell expressed his appreciation for the time and effort spent by the appellant in 
preparing and presenting the appeal. 
 
Comm. Edwards made a motion to uphold the staff interpretation regarding the issuance of a 
Type 67 ABC License and deny the appeal. Comm. Willers seconded. The motion was 
unanimously adopted.     
          
 
Item #2 –– Discussion- Discussion of the Tree Ordinance and policies for the on-going 
protection of trees designated for protection in new development.  
 
Planning Director Goodison presented staff’s report. He noted that the concern about on-going 
tree protection is mainly an issue in private residential yard areas 
 
Comm. Willers initially discussed the current tree policies with Planning Director Goodison and 
the topic was forwarded to the Planning Commission for review. He recommended that the 
Planning Commission and staff be more explicit and specific regarding the preservation of trees 
in the approval of a project and require on-going preservation in most cases.  
 
Comm. Edwards places a high value on trees, even those in private yards, as views of trees 
have value to the neighborhood and the community.  
 
Comm. Howarth noted that in the case of trees in residential yards, it is the property owner’s 
responsibility to maintain them and they should have some rights with respect to their removal.  



May 8, 2014, Page 3 of 4 

 
Chair Tippell opened the item to public comment. 
 
Fred Allebach, resident, is disappointed that the City has proposed to cut down the large pine 
trees adjoining the Marcy House.  
 
Patricia Cullinan, resident and contractor, is opposed to removing trees prematurely before 
developments are approved.  
 
Pat Pulvirenti, resident, supports this discussion and is hopeful it will result in an improvement to 
the Tree ordinance. She confirmed with Planning Director Goodison that the large tree at 
Brockman Lane and Engler Street is preserved with an on-going requirement for its protection.  
 
Chair Tippell closed the item to public comment. 
 
Comm. Felder agreed that he would like to see this addressed in conditions of approval project 
approval going forward. 
 
Comm. Willers noted that such measures would still allow a property owner to apply for the 
removal of a private tree through the City’s Tree Committee, but he would like to see on-going 
preservation be the default requirement. 
 
Comm. Tippell recognized that trees in residential developments are a sensitive issue. He is a 
proponent of preserving as many trees as possible since they benefit the future value of the 
home and enhance the community. However, he noted that not every tree provides the 
neighborhood benefit mentioned by Commissioner Edwards and that some trees can create 
nuisance and safety problems. 
 
Planning Director Goodison stated that this issue will be addressed moving forward in project 
conditions, when applicable, and that the Commission can evaluate it at that time.   
 
In discussing the matter, the Planning Commission expressed support for the suggestions made 
for designating trees for preservation and mitigation measures. 
 
 
Issues Update:  Planning Director Goodison reported the following: 
 
1.  The City Council hearing on June 2nd will discuss  AT & T’s revised proposal and lawsuit 

update. 
 
2.  The City received offers for 32 Patten Street that will be reviewed/negotiated in a closed 

session, with Councilmembers Cook & Barbose serving as the review committee.   
 
Comments from the Audience: Pam Gibson, Index Tribune reporter, is retiring and thanked 
the Planning Commission for their work over the years.  
 
Adjournment: Comm. Roberson made a motion to adjourn. Comm. Heneveld seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8 p.m. to the next regular meeting scheduled for 6:30 p.m. on 
Thursday, June 12, 2014.    
 



May 8, 2014, Page 4 of 4 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly and regularly adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Sonoma Planning Commission on the     day of     ,             2014. 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Cristina Morris, Administrative Assistant 



 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item #1  
Meeting Date: 06/12/14 

 
Agenda Item Title: Application for a Temporary Use Permit to hold the annual zucchini car race 

outdoors on the grounds of the Sebastiani Winery on Friday, August 1, 2014. 
 
Applicant/Owner: Sonoma Valley Certified Farmers Market/Foley Family Wines, Inc. 
 
Site Address/Location: 389 Fourth Street East 
 
Staff Contact: Rob Gjestland, Senior Planner  
    Staff Report Prepared: 06/05/14 
  
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 
Description: Application of the Sonoma Valley Certified Farmers Market for a Temporary 

Use Permit to hold the annual zucchini car race outdoors on the grounds of the 
Sebastiani Winery at 389 Fourth Street East on Friday, August 1, 2014.  

General Plan 
Designation: Wine Production (WP) 
 
Zoning: Base: Wine Production (W) Overlay: Historic (/H) 
Site 
Characteristics: The Sebastiani Winery is located on Fourth Street East between East Spain Street 

and Lovall Valley Road. The facility consists of a several properties and 
buildings used for wine production, wine tasting, and related activities. The 
proposed zucchini race event would occur in the grassy area toward Lovall 
Valley Road, referred to as the “Arbor Park.” 

 
Surrounding 
Land Use/Zoning: North: Single Family Residences/ Low Density Residential  
 South: Single Family Residences/ Low Density Residential  
 East: Winery Building/ Wine Production 
 West: Winery Office/ Low Density Residential 
 
Environmental 
Review: Categorical Exemption Approved/Certified 
 Negative Declaration No Action Required 
 Environmental Impact Report Action Required 
 Not Applicable 
 
Staff 
Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions. 



 

 

PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The Sonoma Valley Certified Farmers Market is requesting approval of a Temporary Use Permit to hold 
the annual zucchini car race outdoors on the grounds of the Sebastiani Winery. The event would take 
place in the grass park area located toward Lovall Valley Road on Friday, August 1, 2014, between 4:30 
p.m. to 8 p.m. (including set-up and breakdown time). The races themselves would occur from 6:15 p.m. 
to 6:45 p.m. No microphones or music are proposed as part of the event and the race track would be 
positioned so spectators face the winery to minimize noise impacts on the nearby residential 
neighborhood. It is anticipated that up to 100 people could attend the event, which would occur 
concurrently with the Friday Night Music Series held inside the tasting room. 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project)  
The property is designated Wine Production by the General Plan. This designation is intended to 
recognize the Sebastiani Winery. Within this land use designation, agricultural or food processing, 
wineries, and winery accessory uses are allowed subject to use permit review. The scope of this proposal 
does not raise issues with regard to General Plan goals and policies. 
 
DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project)    
Use: The property is zoned Wine Production (WP). “Winery Accessory Uses” are allowed in the Wine 
Production zone with a use permit. Winery accessory uses are defined as follows: Uses and activities 
conducted in conjunction with a winery, including wine tasting, food service and restaurants, gift sales 
and special events. 
 
On-Site Parking: Parking for the zucchini car races would be accommodated by the winery’s main 
parking lot, which has over 190 parking spaces. Given the significant amount of off-street parking 
available at the winery, it is staff’s view that the proposal does not raise any parking adequacy issues. 
 
Development Standards: Because the proposal does not involve construction of any new permanent 
structures, coverage, setbacks, building height, and other development standards are not applicable. 
 
Temporary Use Permit Approval: Pursuant to Development Code Section 19.54.030.J, the Planning 
Commission may approve a Temporary Use Permit provided that the following findings can be made: 
 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the temporary use will not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the proposed use; and 
 

2. The temporary use, as described and conditionally approved, will not be detrimental or injurious 
to property and improvements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City; and 
 

3. The temporary use does not involve the construction of new permanent structures for which a 
building permit is required. 

 
Because the winery has not elected to apply for an annual calendar of special events, individual outdoor 
events (excluding weddings), such as the zucchini races, are now forwarded to the Planning Commission 
for review on a case-by-case basis in order to allow public notice and comment from neighboring 
residents. In this instance, it appears the findings for a temporary use permit can be made in that the 
zucchini car races are an annual community event with the majority of activity – the races themselves – 



 
 

 3 

occurring within a half-hour between 6:15 and 6:45pm. That being said, in review of the permit the 
Planning Commission can take into consideration the frequency of special events at the winery and the 
winery’s responsiveness to neighbor concerns that have arisen from previous events. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER  
CITY ORDINANCES/POLICIES ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
Pursuant to Section of 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the leasing or minor alteration of existing 
private structures and facilities is Categorically Exempt from the provisions of CEQA (Class 1 – 
Existing Facilities). 
 
DISCUSSION OF PROJECT ISSUES 
The primary issue to be considered in the review of the event is compatibility with neighboring 
residential uses in terms of noise. Given the limited hours of the event (4:30 p.m. to 8 p.m. with races 
occurring from 6:15p.m. to 6:45p.m.) and that music, microphones and/or amplification are not 
proposed it is staff’s view that the event would not significantly impact residential neighbors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Temporary Use Permit, subject to the attached conditions. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Findings of Project Approval 
2. Draft Conditions of Approval 
3. Location map 
4. Project narrative 
5. Site plans 

 
 
 
cc: Gary Peter, President (via email) 
 Sonoma Valley Certified Farmers Market 
  
 Thale MacRostie, Advisory Committee (via email) 
 Sonoma Valley Certified Farmers Market 
 
 Sebastiani Winery (via email) 
 Attn: Christopher Johnson 
 389 Fourth Street East 
 Sonoma, CA  95476 
 
 Bret Sackett, Police Chief 
 
  
 



 
 

 4 

 
City of Sonoma Planning Commission  

FINDINGS OF PROJECT APPROVAL 
Temporary Use Permit for 2014 Zucchini Car Races 

389 Fourth Street East 
 

June 12, 2014 
 
 
Based on substantial evidence in the record and upon consideration of all testimony received in the course 
of the public review, including the public review, the City of Sonoma Planning Commission finds and 
declares as follows: 
 
 
Temporary Use Permit Findings 
 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the temporary use will not, under the 
circumstances of the particular case, be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the proposed use; and 
 

2. The temporary use, as described and conditionally approved, will not be detrimental or injurious 
to property and improvements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City; and 
 

3. The temporary use does not involve the construction of new permanent structures for which a 
building permit is required. 

 
 
 



 
 

 5 

DRAFT 
 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission  
CONDITIONS OF PROJECT APPROVAL 

Temporary Use Permit for 2014 Zucchini Car Races 
389 Fourth Street East 

 
June 12, 2014 

 
 

1. The zucchini car race event shall be operated and managed in accordance with the project narrative and 
approved site plan, except as modified by these conditions of approval. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 

Timing: Ongoing 
 

2. Hours of operation in for the event, including set-up, breakdown, and attendance by the public shall not 
exceed 4:30 p.m. to 8 p.m. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 

Timing: Ongoing 
 

3. Compliance with the decibel limits of the Noise Ordinance shall be required. 
      

Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 
Timing: Ongoing 

 
4. No other outdoor activities, including food service, the performance of live music or the playing of pre-

recorded music are authorized under this permit. 
 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 
                              Timing: Ongoing 

 
5. There shall be no amplification or microphones associated with the event. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 

Timing: Ongoing 

 



W

MX

U
R

TH
 S

TR
E

E
T 

EA
ST

W
IL

LOVALL VALLEY ROAD

Zoning Designations
R-HS    Hillside Residential (1 D.U./10acres, maximum)
R-R      Rural Residential (2 D.U./acre, maximum)
R-L       Low Density Residential (2-5 D.U./acre)
R-S       Sonoma Residential (3-8 D.U./acre)
R-M      Medium Denisty Residential (6-10 D.U./acre)
R-H      High Density (9-12 D.U./acre)
R-O      Housing Opportunity (15-20 D.U./acre)
R-P       Mobile Home Park (7 D.U./acre, maximum)
MX       Mixed Use (12 D.U./acre, maximum)
C          Commercial (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
C-G      Commercial-Gateway (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
W         Wine Production
P          Public Facility
Pk        Park
A          Agriculture

´

Project Summary

Vicinity Map

0 200 400100 Feet

1 inch = 200 feet

Subject Property

Project Name: Zucchini Car Race Event

Property Address: 222 West Spain Street

Applicant: SVCFM

Property Owner: Foley Family Wines, Inc.

General Plan Land Use: Wine Production

Zoning - Base: Wine Production

Zoning - Overlay: Historic

Summary:
Consideration of a Temporary Use Permit to hold the 
annual zucchini car race outdoors on the grounds of 
the Sebastiani Winery on Friday, August 1, 2014.









City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item #2   
Meeting Date: 6-12-14 

 
Agenda Item Title: Application for an Exception to the fence height standards to construct a section 

of 10-foot tall replacement fencing along the side (west) property line of a 
residential property. 

 
Applicant/Owner: Michael Larbre/Michael and Rita Larbre 
 
Site Address/Location: 222 West Spain Street 
 
Staff Contact: Rob Gjestland, Senior Planner  
    Staff Report Prepared: 5/30/14  
  
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 
Description: Application of Michael Larbre for an Exception to the fence height standards to 

construct a section of 10-foot tall replacement fencing along the side (west) 
boundary of the property located at 222 West Spain Street.   

 
General Plan 
Designation: Low Density Residential (LR) 
 
Zoning: Base: Low Density Residential (R-L) Overlay:  None  
 
Site 
Characteristics: The subject property is a ±10,890-square foot parcel located on the north side of 

West Spain Street adjacent to the First Congregational Church of Sonoma. The 
property is currently developed with a duplex toward West Spain Street with a 
single-family home behind. 

 
Surrounding 
Land Use/Zoning: North: Vallejo Home State Park/Park 
 South: Residence and duplexes (opposite West Spain St.)/Medium Density Residential 
 East: Vallejo Home State Park/Park 
 West: First Congregational Church of Sonoma/Low Density Residential 
 
Environmental 
Review: Categorical Exemption Approved/Certified 
 Negative Declaration No Action Required 
 Environmental Impact Report Action Required 
 Not Applicable 
 
Staff 
Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions.



 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 1987, the previous owner gained approval from the Planning Commission for a fence height 
exception allowing 10-foot tall fencing along the sides and rear of the subject property. The approved 
fencing consisted of 8 feet of solid vertical boards plus a cantilevered top element bringing the total 
height of the fence to 10 feet. Over time, the majority of this previously approved fencing has been 
modified or replaced in compliance with the current fence height limitations (this includes 6’ and 7’-tall 
sections of solid fencing on the east and west property lines and 5.5’-tall open wire fencing along the 
rear property line). Prompted by wind damage incurred earlier this year, the current property owner is 
requesting approval to replace the remaining portion of overheight fencing on the west property line 
with new fencing of a similar height but different design.      
 
DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The applicant will be installing new fencing on the east and west sides of the subject property and is 
requesting approval of a fence height exception to replace an existing section of 10-foot tall fencing on 
the west property boundary side where adjoining the First Congregational Church of Sonoma. Similar to 
existing, the section of 10-foot tall replacement fencing would have a length of 85 feet beginning 65 feet 
back from the front property line and terminating at the northwest corner of the property. In contrast to 
the existing 10-foot tall fencing, which has a cantilevered top element, the proposed redwood fencing 
would be entirely vertical, consisting of 8.5 feet of solid material with an additional 1.5 feet of lattice 
above. This section of taller fencing is intended to provide privacy and buffering from noise and activity 
generated in the adjacent driveway and parking lot area by the thrift shop, pre-school, church services, 
events and functions that operate/occur on the adjoining property. Other replacement fencing planned 
for the east and west property boundaries would comply with the fence height limitations and have a 
consistent design/appearance. The applicant has indicated that a natural redwood stain or a darker green 
stain would be used to complement the new green exterior paint color of the residence. Further details 
can be found in the attached application submittal. 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project)  
The property is designated Low Density Residential by the General Plan, which permits single-family 
homes and related accessory structures. The proposal does not raise any issues in terms of consistency 
with the goals and policies of the City of Sonoma 2020 General Plan. 
 
DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project)    
Fence Height Requirements: Under the Development Code, fencing along side or rear property lines is 
limited to a maximum height of seven feet of solid material plus one additional foot of open material 
unless the Planning Commission approves an Exception from the fence height standards. In order to 
approve an Exception, the Planning Commission must make the following findings: 
 

1. The fence will be compatible with the design, appearance, and physical characteristics of the 
site and other existing structures in the surrounding neighborhood; 
 
The more refined design of the replacement fencing would improve upon what exists, replacing 
the solid cantilevered section with a trellis and employing a natural/neutral stain to complement 
the new house color, in contrast to the rust color of the existing fencing. Although the proposed 
section of overheight is taller than fencing elsewhere in the neighborhood, it replaces fencing of 
a similar height at the same location and the condition along the west side of the property where 
adjacent to the church is unique, which provides a basis for an exception to the normal height 



 
 

standards. In addition, the replacement fence would not be obtrusive when viewed from West 
Spain Street, as it is set back 65 feet from the sidewalk. 

 
2. The height, orientation, and location of the fence is in proper relation to the physical 

characteristics of the site and surrounding properties; 
 

Similar to existing conditions, the section of overheight fencing would be appropriately located 
along a portion of the west property line to provide buffering and privacy from noise and 
activity generated by the adjoining church, thrift shop, and pre-school. The proposed section of 
overheight fencing would replace existing fencing of the same height at the same location and 
would feature a significant setback from West Spain Street (65’). 

 
3. The fence is a planned architectural feature and does not dominate the site or overwhelm 

adjacent properties, structures, or passersby; 
 

As noted above the overheight fencing would be compatible with the new house color and have 
a more open design than existing fencing at this location, which could otherwise be 
maintained/repaired in perpetuity. In addition, the overheight fencing adjoins a driveway and 
parking lot and would be setback significantly from West Spain Street (65’), minimizing views 
from the public right of way. 

 
4. The fence will be of sound construction and located so as not to cause a safety hazard. 

 
Due to its height over eight feet, a building permit will be required to ensure that the fence is 
constructed appropriately. 

  
CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER  
CITY ORDINANCES/POLICIES ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
Pursuant to Section of 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the construction of an accessory structure, 
including a fence, is Categorically Exempt from the provisions of CEQA (Class 3 – New Construction 
or Conversion of Small Structures). 
 
DISCUSSION OF PROJECT ISSUES 
As noted above, the proposed section of overheight fencing replaces fencing of a similar height at the 
same location with a more attractive and less imposing design. The section of overheight fencing would 
be setback significantly from West Spain Street and the condition along the west side of the property 
where adjacent to the church is unique and justifies an exception from the normal height standards. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the fence height exception subject to the attached conditions. 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Findings of Project Approval 
2. Draft Conditions of Approval 
3. Vicinity Map 
4. Project Narrative, Photos, Site Plan & Fence Detail 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
cc: Mike Larbre 
 222 West Spain Street 
 Sonoma, CA 95476 
    



 
 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
FINDINGS OF PROJECT APPROVAL 

Larbre Fence Height Exception – 222 West Spain Street 
 

June 12, 2014 
 
 
 
Based on substantial evidence in the record and upon consideration of all testimony received in the course 
of the public review, including the public review, the City of Sonoma Planning Commission finds and 
declares as follows: 
 
 
Findings for an Exception to the Fence Height Standards 
 

1. The fence will be compatible with the design, appearance, and physical characteristics of the 
site ands other existing structures in the surrounding neighborhood; 

 
2. The height, orientation, and location of the fence is in proper relation to the physical 

characteristics of the site and surrounding properties; 
 

3. The fence is a planned architectural feature and does not dominate the site or overwhelm 
adjacent properties, structures, or passersby; and 

 
4. The fence will be of sound construction and located so as not to cause a safety hazard. 

 
 
 



 
 

 
DRAFT 

 
City of Sonoma Planning Commission 

FINDINGS OF PROJECT APPROVAL 
Larbre Fence Height Exception – 222 West Spain Street 

 
June 12, 2014 

 
 

1. The section of overheight replacement fencing shall be constructed in conformance with the project narrative, and 
approved site plan and fence elevation detail. 

 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 
 Timing: Ongoing 
 
2. All Building Department and Building Code requirements shall be met. A building permit shall be required for the 

section of overheight fencing. 
 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department 
 Timing: Prior to Construction 
 

 
 
 



R-M

D
 S

TR
EE

T 
W

ES
T

CHURCH STREET  

TH
IR

D
 S

TR
EE

T 
W

ES
T

Zoning Designations
R-HS    Hillside Residential (1 D.U./10acres, maximum)
R-R      Rural Residential (2 D.U./acre, maximum)
R-L       Low Density Residential (2-5 D.U./acre)
R-S       Sonoma Residential (3-8 D.U./acre)
R-M      Medium Denisty Residential (6-10 D.U./acre)
R-H      High Density (9-12 D.U./acre)
R-O      Housing Opportunity (15-20 D.U./acre)
R-P       Mobile Home Park (7 D.U./acre, maximum)
MX       Mixed Use (12 D.U./acre, maximum)
C          Commercial (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
C-G      Commercial-Gateway (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
W         Wine Production
P          Public Facility
Pk        Park
A          Agriculture

´

Project Summary

Vicinity Map

0 200 400100 Feet

1 inch = 200 feet

Subject Property

Project Name: Larbre Fence Exception

Property Address: 222 West Spain Street

Applicant: Michael Larbre

Property Owner: Michael & Rita Larbre

General Plan Land Use: Low Density Residential

Zoning - Base: Low Density Residential

Zoning - Overlay: Historic

Summary:
Consideration of an Exception to the fence height 
standards to construct a section of 10-foot tall 
replacement fencing along the side (west) property 
line of a residential property















City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item #3     
Meeting Date: 06/12/14 

 
Agenda Item Title: Application for a Use Permit allowing conversion of a mixed-use building into 

two vacation rental units as an adaptive reuse of an historic structure. 
 
Applicant/Owner: Leonard Tillem/Leonard Tillem and Laura Olsen 
 
Site Address/Location: 162, 164 and 166 West Spain Street 
 
Staff Contact: Rob Gjestland, Senior Planner  
    Staff Report Prepared: 06/06/14 
  
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 
Description: Application of Leonard Tillem for a Use Permit allowing conversion of a mixed-

use building into two vacation rental units as an adaptive reuse of an historic 
structure. 

 
General Plan 
Designation: Medium Density Residential  
 
Planning Area:   Downtown District 
 
Zoning: Base: Medium Density Residential (R-M) Overlay: Historic 
 
Site 
Characteristics: The subject property is a 7,500 square foot parcel located on the north side of 

West Spain Street, mid-block between First Street West and Second Street West. 
The property is developed with a historic building (the “Weyl House” 
constructed around 1880) that accommodates offices on the second floor and two 
residential units on the ground floor. A three-car garage and parking lot are 
located behind the structure. A recent historic resources evaluation prepared by 
McKale Consulting determined that the Weyl House is eligible for listing on both 
the National Register of Historic Places and California Register of Historical 
Resources.  

 
Surrounding 
Land Use/Zoning:       North: Residential units within Park Villas PUD/ Medium Density Residential (R-M) 
 South: Vacation rental, residence, and B&B/ Medium Density Residential (R-M) 
 East: Driveway and apartments/ Medium Density Residential (R-M) 

West: Single-family home/Medium Density Residential (R-M) 
Environmental 
Review: Categorical Exemption Approved/Certified 
 Negative Declaration No Action Required 
 Environmental Impact Report Action Required 
 Not Applicable 
 
Staff 
Recommendation: Commission discretion.



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 2 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
BACKGROUND 
The structure (referred to as the ”Weyl House”) was originally built as a single-family home around 
1880 and was later converted into a triplex with two apartments on the ground floor and one apartment 
on the second floor. In 1996 the Planning Commission approved a Use Permit allowing conversion of 
the second floor apartment to professional offices. 
 
DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION   
The applicant is requesting approval of a Use Permit to allow conversion of a mixed-use building into 
two vacation rental units as an adaptive reuse of an historic structure. In this regard, staff would note that 
a recent historic resource evaluation prepared by McKale Consulting determined that the building is 
eligible for listing on both the National Register of Historic Places and California Register of Historical 
Resources. Under the proposal, the existing floor plans would be reconfigured to create two 1,140-
square foot, two bedroom, two-bathroom vacation rentals (one on each floor). The project narrative 
indicates that the exterior appearance of the structure would not change. Planned improvements include 
replacement of water heaters, new HVAC systems, the provision of fire sprinklers, a full upgrade of 
plumbing and electrical systems, reconstruction of the rear decks as well as improvements more specific 
to the proposed conversion such as new bath/kitchen facilities, countertops, cabinetry, doors, flooring, 
tile, interior repainting and other finish work. The applicant estimates that an expenditure of $250,000 
would be required for all work associated with the project (see attached bids/proposals). As vacation 
rentals, the units would be rented on a short-term basis for periods of less than 30 consecutive days. The 
applicant indicates that there has been difficulty securing tenants for the upstairs offices given market 
conditions and that the structure, which is approximately 135 years old, is in need of substantial 
upgrades. The applicant further asserts that it is not economically feasible for the property owners to use 
the building as a residential rental or office space and that the only way for the proposed conversion to 
make financial sense and enable preservation of the building is to allow the two units to be used as 
vacation rentals. More details on the proposal can be found in the attached application materials. 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project)  
The property is designated Medium Density Residential by the General Plan. This land use designation is 
intended to provide opportunities for multi-family housing and related public improvement, especially in 
transition areas between higher density and single-family development. Although vacation rentals are 
normally prohibited in the corresponding Medium Density Residential (R-M) zone, they can be 
considered as an adaptive reuse of a historically significant building. The following General Plan goals 
and policies apply to the project: 
 
Community Development Element, Policy 5.4: Preserve and continue to utilize historic buildings as 
much as feasible. 
 
Community Development Element, Policy 5.8: Encourage the designation and preservation of local 
historic structures and landmarks, and protect cultural resources. 
 
Local Economy Element, Policy 1.5: Promote and accommodate year-round tourism that is consistent 
with the historic, small-town character of Sonoma. 
 
Housing Element, Goal 3: Maintain and enhance the existing housing stock. 
 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 3 
 

The proposal is consistent with General Plan policies that encourage tourism and the preservation of 
historic buildings. However impacts on the housing stock, specifically the loss of apartments, must be 
considered as well as the stringent findings specific to vacation rentals as an adaptive reuse. 
 
DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
Use: The property is zoned Medium Density Residential (R-M) and lies within the City’s Historic 
Overlay Zone. Pursuant to Section 19.42.030 of the Development Code (Adaptive Reuse), limited 
nonresidential uses (including vacation rentals), may be allowed in officially designated historic 
structures, subject to review and approval of a Use Permit by the Planning Commission. As previously 
noted, a recent historic resource evaluation determined that the building is eligible for listing on both the 
National Register of Historic Places and California Register of Historical Resources. Accordingly, the 
proposed vacation rental use can be considered under the adaptive reuse provisions. However, in order 
to approve the adaptive reuse of an historic structure for vacation rental purposes, the Planning 
Commission must make the following findings in addition to those necessary for Use Permit approval. 
The alteration or adaptive reuse would: 
 

1. Enhance, perpetuate, preserve, protect, and restore those historic districts, neighborhoods, sites, 
structures, and zoning districts which contribute to the aesthetic and cultural benefit of the City. 
The building improvements/upgrades resulting from the project would help preserve a 
historically significant structure that contributes to the aesthetic and cultural benefit of the City.  

 
2. Stabilize and improve the economic value of historic districts, neighborhoods, sites, structures, 

and zoning districts. 
The proposed change of use and associated building improvements/upgrades would increase the 
value of the property. Additional income derived from the proposed use would increase the 
likelihood that the historic structure would continue to be maintained into the future. 
  

3. Preserve diverse architectural design reflecting phases of the City’s history, and encourage 
design styles and construction methods and materials that are compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood(s).  
The proposal would not change the appearance or architectural design of the historic structure. 
 

4. Promote and encourage continued private ownership and utilization of structures now so owned 
and used. 
The proposal would promote continued private ownership, however private ownership would 
likely continue regardless of the project.  

 
5. Substantially comply with the applicable Secretary of Interior Standards and Guidelines for the 

Treatment of Historic Properties as well as the applicable requirements and guidelines of this 
Chapter. 
Under the proposed conditions of approval, any exterior building modifications other than 
maintenance and/or in-kind replacement of exterior materials that require a building permit 
would be subject to DRHPC review and must demonstrate compliance with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 

 
The following additional finding is required for applications for adaptive reuse as a vacation rental: 
 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 4 
 

6. Restore and rehabilitate a historic structure and/or property, which is listed or eligible for listing 
on the State Register of Historic Places, that has fallen into such a level of disrepair that the 
economic benefits of adaptive reuse are necessary to stem further deterioration, correct deficient 
conditions, or avoid demolition as implemented in the conditions of project approval. 
Clearly, the historic structure would benefit from the building improvements/upgrades that 
would result from the project. However, the Planning Commission needs to find that: 1) the 
building’s condition is at a level of disrepair warranting a vacation rental use as specified under 
this stringent finding; and, 2) that other allowable residential/commercial uses of the structure 
are not viable alternatives that would also preserve the historical resource. This finding is 
discussed further under “Project Issues” below. 

 
Development Standards: The proposed vacation rental units would operate within an existing building. 
As a result, the project does not raise any issues in terms of compliance with building setback, FAR, lot 
coverage, open space, and building height standards. 
 
On-Site Parking: Under the Development Code, one parking space is required for each bedroom within 
a vacation rental. Accordingly, a total of four on-site parking spaces would be required for the two 
vacation rental units. This requirement is exceeded by the three-car garage and five surface parking 
spaces located behind the structure. 
 
Design Review: The proposal involves the re-use of an existing mixed-use building. The project 
narrative anticipates that the exterior appearance of the structure would not change. However, it is 
possible that planned modifications to the floor plans, accessibility improvements required by the 
Building Code, and/or other upgrades, could result in alterations to the building exterior. Pursuant to 
19.54.080.B.2 of the Development Code, maintenance and in-kind replacement of exterior materials are 
not subject to design review. However, exterior building modifications beyond that which require a 
building permit, are subject to design review. A draft condition of approval has been included in this 
regard and because the building is considered an historic resource, such exterior modifications would 
also be required to conform to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties (see “Environmental Review” below). 
 
Vacation Rental Standards: The applicable standards set forth under Section 19.50.110 of the 
Development Code have been included in draft conditions of approval (attached). These include 
requirements related to fire and life safety, maintaining a business license, payment of Transient 
Occupancy (TOT) taxes, and limitations on signs. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER  
CITY ORDINANCES/POLICIES ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
Pursuant to Section of 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the leasing, permitting, or operation of 
existing private structures involving negligible or no expansion of use is considered Categorically 
Exempt from the provisions of CEQA (Class 1 – Existing Facilities). In addition, under Section 15331 
of the CEQA Guidelines, the maintenance, repair, rehabilitation, restoration, and preservation of an 
historical resource, may be considered categorically exempt from the provisions of CEQA provided that 
exterior improvements are consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties (Class 31 – Historical Resource Restoration/Rehabilitation).  
 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 5 
 

As previously noted, a historic resource evaluation prepared by McKale Consulting (attached) 
determined that the building is eligible for listing on both the National Register of Historic Places and 
California Register of Historical Resources and is therefore considered an historical resource under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Accordingly, any exterior modifications to the structure 
would be required to conform to the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties. Although no exterior modifications are proposed at this time, it is possible that the planned 
alterations to the interior floor plans or other building improvements might lead to changes to the 
exterior. For this reason, the draft conditions of approval include a requirement for DRHPC review and 
approval of any proposed exterior modifications, subject to the issuance of a building permit, beyond 
maintenance/in kind replacement of exterior materials. As part of this DRHPC review process, an 
evaluation by a qualified historical consultant would be required at the applicant’s expense, to confirm 
that any such exterior building modifications conform to the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties. 
 
DISCUSSION OF PROJECT ISSUES 
Required Building Code/ADA Upgrades: The Building Official has confirmed that a number of ADA 
accessibility upgrades would be triggered by the proposed change in use, most notably the ground floor 
vacation rental unit will need to be made handicap accessible through the provision of a wheelchair 
ramp or lift. Both vacation rental units would also need to have an accessible design in terms of the floor 
plan, and bathrooms. Beyond that, all proposed electrical, plumbing, and other interior work will need to 
comply with current Building Code standards and fire sprinklers will be required as the project valuation 
will exceed the $100,000 threshold. 
 
Compatibility: In staff’s view, the proposal does not raise significant issues in terms of compatibility 
with surrounding land uses. The property is located in the Downtown District a half-block from the 
Plaza in a setting that supports a variety of land uses including residential units, commercial businesses, 
a B&B inn, and other vacation rentals. This mixed use setting and the proximity to the Plaza actually 
make the site well-suited for the proposed in that vehicle trips would be minimized, with visitors able to 
walk to and patronize local shops and restaurants. In addition, the applicant has experience operating 
other vacation rentals and resides locally, affording the ability to address any issues that may arise. 
 
Impact on Housing Stock: As discussed above, the General Plan supports tourism and historic 
preservation but also calls for the conservation of housing stock. To date, the loss of residential housing 
due to vacation rental conversion over time has not significantly impacted the City’s housing stock, 
which is currently estimated at 5,555 housing units. However, one issue specific to this application that 
the Planning Commission must consider is that the two downstairs units proposed for conversion are 
apartments and the planning area standards for the Downtown District encourage the preservation and 
enhancement of the downtown’s housing stock with a focus on multi-family and higher-density 
residential development. It is estimated that attached/multi-family housing comprises 35% (about 1,950 
units) of the City’s total housing stock. 
 
Adaptive Reuse Finding for Vacation Rentals: The additional finding required for vacation rentals as an 
adaptive reuse sets a high bar for approval and was adopted in 2009 specifically to minimize 
opportunities for vacation rentals within residential zoning districts. Under this finding, a building must 
be in poor condition with no other viable uses available in terms of correcting deficient conditions and 
preserving a historic resource. The applicant has provided estimates from various contractors in order to 
document the costs of refurbishing the structure, which are estimated at approximately $250,000. It 
should be noted that a substantial portion of these costs are associated with installing finishes and 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 6 
 

improvements intended to support the vacation rental use that go beyond maintenance and the correction 
of deficiencies. However, the applicant has also documented a number of plumbing and electrical issues 
that need to be addressed and it does seem likely that given the age of the building, it is due for a 
substantial renovation that might be difficult to support economically if the current uses of the building 
are maintained. As pointed out by the applicant, the upper-floor office space, in particular, is no longer 
considered a very desirable space and even if it were substantially upgraded, market conditions are not 
favorable for that type of use.   
  
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is recommending commission discretion given the questions about preserving multi-family 
housing units and meeting the stringent adaptive re-use findings specific to vacation rentals. Draft 
conditions of approval in the event that the Planning Commission support to the request.  
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Findings 
2. Draft Conditions of Approval  
3. Location map 
4. Project Narrative 
5. Site Plan 
6. Proposed Floor Plans  
7. Proposals/Bids for plumbing, electrical, and building upgrades 
8. Historic Resources Evaluation Report prepared by McKale Consulting, dated May 10, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Leonard Tillem 
 846 Broadway 
 Sonoma, CA 95476 
 
 
 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 7 
 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
FINDINGS OF PROJECT APPROVAL 

Tillem Vacation Rentals Use Permit 
162-166 West Spain Street 

June 12, 2014 
 
Based on substantial evidence in the record, including but not limited to the staff report, and upon 
consideration of all testimony received in the course of the public review, including the public review, the 
City of Sonoma Planning Commission finds and declares as follows: 
 
 
Use Permit Approval 
 
1. That the proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any Specific Plan; 

 
2. That the proposed use is allowed with a conditional Use Permit within the applicable zoning district 

and complies with all applicable standards and regulations of the Development Code (except for 
approved Variances and Exceptions). 

 
3. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are compatible with the 

existing and future land uses in the vicinity; and 
 
4. The proposed use will not impair the architectural integrity and character of the zoning district in 

which it is to be located. 
 
Adaptive Reuse Approval 

 
1. Enhance, perpetuate, preserve, protect, and restore those historic districts, neighborhoods, sites, 

structures, and zoning districts which contribute to the aesthetic and cultural benefit of the City; 
 
2. Stabilize and improve the economic value of historic districts, neighborhoods, sites, structures, and 

zoning districts; 
 
3. Preserve diverse architectural design reflecting phases of the City’s history, and encourage design 

styles and construction methods and materials that are compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood(s);  

 
4. Promote and encourage continued private ownership and utilization of structures now so owned and 

used. 
 
5. Restore and rehabilitate a historic structure and/or property, which is listed or eligible for listing on 

the State Register of Historic Places, that has fallen into such a level of disrepair that the economic 
benefits of adaptive reuse are necessary to stem further deterioration, correct deficient conditions, or 
avoid demolition as implemented in the conditions of project approval. 

 
6. Substantially comply with the applicable Secretary of Interior Standards and Guidelines for the 

Treatment of Historic Properties as well as the applicable requirements and guidelines of this 
Chapter. 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 8 
 

DRAFT 
 City of Sonoma Planning Commission 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Tillem Vacation Rentals Use Permit 

162-166 West Spain Street 
June 12, 2014 

 
1. The two vacation rental units shall be constructed and operated in conformance with the project narrative, and the 

approved site and floor plans except as modified by these conditions and the following: 
 

a. This permit does not constitute an approval for a Special Event Venue as defined under Section 19.92.020 of the 
Development Code 

b. Outside activities/noise shall cease by 10p.m. 
  
 Enforcement Responsibility: Planning, Building and Public Works 
 Timing: Ongoing 
 
2. A minimum of four on-site parking spaces shall be provided and maintained for the two vacation rental units on the 

property. 
 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning, Building, and Public Works 
                                 Timing: Ongoing 

 
3. The applicant/property owner shall obtain and maintain a business license from the City for the vacation rental use, and 

shall register with the City to pay associated Transient Occupancy Taxes (TOT) for the two vacation rental units. 
 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; Finance Department 

                                       Timing: Prior to operating the vacation rentals and ongoing 
 
4. Fire and life safety requirements administered by the Fire Department and the Building Division shall be implemented. 

Minimum requirements shall include approved smoke detectors in each lodging room, installation of an approved fire 
extinguisher in the structure, and the inclusion of an evacuation plan posted in each lodging room. 

 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department; Fire Department 
                                      Timing:     Prior to operating the vacation rentals and ongoing 
 
5. The vacation rental units shall comply with the annual fire and life safety certification procedures of the Fire 

Department. 
 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Fire Department 
                                      Timing:     Ongoing 
 
6. Any exterior building modifications that go beyond maintenance and/or in-kind replacement of exterior materials and 

require a building permit shall be subject to review and approval by the DRHPC. As part of the DRHPC review process, 
an evaluation by a qualified historical consultant shall be required and submitted at the applicant’s expense, to confirm 
that these exterior building modifications conform to the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 

                          Timing: Prior to the issuance of a building permit 
 
7. Any signage proposed in association with the vacation rentals shall be subject to review and approval by Planning 

Department staff or the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission as applicable.  
 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 
                                 Timing:     Prior to installation of any signage for the vacation rentals 



City of Sonoma 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

Page 9 
 

 
8. All Building Department requirements shall be met, including applicable Building Code requirements related to the 

change in use of the structure, and compliance with ADA requirements (i.e. disabled access, disable parking, accessible 
path of travel, bathrooms, etc.). A building permit shall be required. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department 

                          Timing: Prior to construction; Prior to operating the vacation rentals 
 
9. All Fire Department requirements shall be met including the provision of fire sprinklers within the structure if deemed 

necessary. 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Fire Department; Building Department 
                          Timing: Prior to issuance of any building permit; Prior to operating the vacation rentals 
 
10. The Applicant shall pay any required increased water fees applicable to the changes in use in accordance with the latest 

adopted rate schedule. 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works Department; Water Operations Supervisor; City Engineer 
                          Timing: Prior to finaling any building permit; Prior to operating the vacation rentals 
 
11. The applicant shall comply with the following requirements of the Sanitation Division of Sonoma County Permit & 

Resource Management Department (PRMD) and the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) as applicable: 
  

a. In accordance with Section 5.05, "Alteration of Use", of the Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District Ordinances, 
the Applicant shall pay any applicable increased sewer use fees for converting use of the structure to two vacation 
rental units. Any required increased sewer use fees shall be paid the Engineering Division of PRMD prior to the 
commencement of the use(s). 

b. A sewer clearance shall be provided to the City of Sonoma Building Department verifying that all applicable sewer 
fees have been paid prior to the issuance of any building permit. Note: Substantial fees may apply for new sewer 
connections and/or the use of additional ESDs from an existing sewer connection. The applicant is 
encouraged to check with the Sonoma County Sanitation Division immediately to determine whether such 
fees apply. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Sanitation Division of Sonoma County Planning & Management Resource 

Department; Sonoma County Water Agency: City of Sonoma Building 
Department 

            Timing: Prior to issuance of a building permit; Prior to operating the vacation rentals 

12. In addition to those already identified, the following agencies must be contacted by the applicant to determine permit or 
other regulatory requirements of the agency prior to issuance of a building permit, including the payment of applicable 
fees. 

  
a. Sonoma Valley Unified School District [For school impact fees] 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department 

                          Timing: Prior to issuance of a building permit 
 
 
 



R-M

Pk

THE PLA

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

TR
EE

T 
W

ES
T

CHURCH STREET  

Zoning Designations
R-HS    Hillside Residential (1 D.U./10acres, maximum)
R-R      Rural Residential (2 D.U./acre, maximum)
R-L       Low Density Residential (2-5 D.U./acre)
R-S       Sonoma Residential (3-8 D.U./acre)
R-M      Medium Denisty Residential (6-10 D.U./acre)
R-H      High Density (9-12 D.U./acre)
R-O      Housing Opportunity (15-20 D.U./acre)
R-P       Mobile Home Park (7 D.U./acre, maximum)
MX       Mixed Use (12 D.U./acre, maximum)
C          Commercial (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
C-G      Commercial-Gateway (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
W         Wine Production
P          Public Facility
Pk        Park
A          Agriculture

´

Project Summary

Vicinity Map

0 200 400100 Feet

1 inch = 200 feet

Subject Property

Project Name: Tillem-Olsen Vacation Rentals

Property Address: 162-166 West Spain Street

Applicant: Leonard Tillem

Property Owner: Leonard Tillem & Laura Olsen

General Plan Land Use: Medium Density Residential

Zoning - Base: Medium Density Residential

Zoning - Overlay: Historic

Summary:
Consideration of a Use Permit to convert a mixed-use 
building into two vacation rental units as an adaptive 
reuse of an historic structure.



































































June 12, 2014 
Agenda Item 4 

 
M E M O 

 
To: Planning Commission 
 
From: David Goodison, Planning Director 
 
Re: Study session on a 7-unit Planned Development proposed on a 0.86-acre site located at 

800 West Spain Street (Applicant: Caymus Capital) 
 
Property Description 

 
The site is a single parcel having an area of 0.86 acres located on the north side of West Spain 
Street, opposite its intersection with Seventh Street West. The parcel has a depth of 332 feet and 
its frontage on West Spain Street is 93 feet, but it widens at the back to 136 feet. The site is des-
ignated Medium Density Residential by the General Plan and has a corresponding R-M zoning, 
which allows a residential density of between 7-11 dwelling units per acre. Adjoining uses are as 
follows: 
 
North: Two duplexes, fronting on Joaquin Drive. 
South: The Elizabeth Garden condominium complex (across West Spain Street). 
East: A small warehouse and two duplexes. 
West: An affordable planned development known as Sonoma Commons. 

 
The site had been developed with a single-family residence and several out-buildings, but these 
were demolished recently due to health and safety concerns. 
 
Proposed Development 
 
The proposal involves developing the site with a Planned Development consisting of seven de-
tached single-family homes on individual lots. All of the homes are proposed as partial two-story 
units with 3 bedrooms and 2½ baths (building heights range from 27’ to 27.5’ measured at the 
roof peak of the second floor elements). Two basic unit types are proposed, with one variation of 
the “B” unit type on Lot 4. The table below summarizes the proposed lot sizes, distribution of 
unit types, and resulting coverage and floor area ratio. 
 

Lot # Unit Type Lot Area Bldg Area w/ 
Garage 

Coverage FAR 

Lot 1 A 3,900 1,960 0.38 0.50 
Lot 2 A 3,600 1,960 0.42 0.54* 
Lot 3 A 3,600 1,960 0.42 0.54* 
Lot 4 B-2 4,000 1,913 0.31 0.48 
Lot 5 A 3,300 1,960 0.45 0.59* 
Lot 6 B 4,900 1,913 0.25 0.39 
Lot 7 B 3,600 1,913 0.35 0.53* 
*Exceeds normal FAR maximum of 0.50. 
 
Living areas for the units range from 1,480 to 1,530 square feet, and each would have an at-
tached two-car garage. Lot sizes range between 3,300 and 4,900 square feet with an average size 
of 3,842 square feet. The homes are arranged along a private drive running along the western 



 2 

property line that culminates in a turn-around area. The site plan focuses on providing open 
space through the provision of private rear yards, but the turnaround area incorporates some 
small, landscaped common areas.  
 
With regard to setbacks, the three units closest to West Spain Street feature setbacks of ±12’ 
from the front property line (at the back of the sidewalk along the private drive) to the building 
wall, and a ±7’ setback to the front porch. These units are also uniformly set back from one an-
other at their side yards, with 5-foot internal setbacks (for a 10-foot separation between the build-
ings). Variations in in the rear wall planes result in a range of setbacks, from 7’ to 30’ (Lot 4) 
and from 13.4’ to 24’ (Lots 1, 2, 3). Further to the south, Lot 5 has rear yard setbacks ranging 
from 5’ to 16’, while the two southernmost lots have rear yard setbacks of 14.6’ and 14-9’. 
Along the west edge of the site, which adjoins Sonoma Commons, the total setback between the 
buildings and the western property line of the site ranges from 36’ to 57’ (Lots 1-4) and 6.3’ to 9’ 
(Lot 7). It should also be noted that the unit on Lot 1 is set back only 9’ from West Spain Street. 
In many areas of the project, the proposed setbacks fall short of the normal standards. As dis-
cussed in greater detail below, the applicant is proposing the project as a Planned Development, 
though the Planning Commission may, at is discretion, allow for reductions in quantitative 
standards of the Development Code, subject to certain findings. 
 
General Plan Policy Direction 
 
The site has a General Plan land use designation of “Medium Density Residential,” a designation 
intended to provide opportunities for multi-family housing and related public improvements, es-
pecially in transition areas between higher density and single-family development. The use of 
detached structures, as proposed by the applicant, may be viewed as consistent with this intent. 
General Plan policies that apply to the project and warrant consideration by the Planning Com-
mission include the following: 
 
Community Development Element: 

− Encourage a variety of unit types in residential projects (CDE 4.2). 
− Require pedestrian and bicycle access and amenities in all development (CDE 4.4). 
− Promote higher density, infill development, while ensuring that building mass, scale and 

form are compatible with neighborhood and town character (CDE 5.5). 
 
Housing Element: 

− Encourage the sustainable use of land and promote affordability by encouraging devel-
opment at the higher end of the density range within the Medium Density, High Density, 
Housing Opportunity, and Mixed Use land use designations (HE 1.4). 

− Utilize inclusionary zoning as a tool to integrate affordable units within market rate de-
velopments, and increase the availability of affordable housing throughout the communi-
ty (HE 1.6). 

− Maintain and enhance the existing housing stock and ensure that new residential devel-
opment is consistent with Sonoma’s town character and neighborhood quality (HE Goal 
3). 

− Promote the use of sustainable construction techniques and environmentally sensitive de-
sign for all housing, to include best practices in water conservation, low-impact drainage, 
and greenhouse gas reduction (HE 6.3). 

 
Environmental Resources Element: 

− Require new development to provide adequate private and, where appropriate, public 
open space (ERE 1.4). 



 3 

− Protect Sonoma Valley watershed resources, including surface and groundwater supplies 
and quality (ERE 2.4). 

− Preserve existing trees and plant new trees (ERE 2.6). 
− Encourage construction, building maintenance, landscaping, and transportation practices 

that promote energy and water conservation and reduce green-house gas emissions (ERE 
3.2). 

 
Circulation Element: 

− Incorporate bicycle facilities and amenities in new development (CE 2.5). 
− Encourage a mixture of uses and higher densities where appropriate to improve the via-

bility of transit and pedestrian and bicycle travel (CE 3.2). 
− Ensure that new development mitigates its traffic impacts (CE 3.7). 

 
Public Safety Element: 

− Ensure that all development projects provide adequate fire protection (PSE 1.3). 
 
Noise Element: 

− Encourage all new development to minimize noise intrusions through project design (NE 
1.6). 

 
Development Standards 
 
Project Design: The project site is located in the Northwest Planning Area. For this Planning Ar-
ea, the Development Code indicates that new multi-family development along West Spain Street 
should emulate good examples in the area by providing generous street-side setbacks, maintain-
ing low building profiles, and locating parking within the interior or back of lots.  
 
Consistency with Density Limitations. The site has a General Plan land use designation and cor-
responding zoning of Medium Density Residential, which allows a maximum density of 11 units 
per acre. As proposed, the project would have a density of 8 units per acre. (In comparison, 
Sonoma Commons, which is an affordable development, has a density of 15.4 units per acre, 
while the duplex development on the east has a density of 9 units per acre.) 
 
Zoning Regulations: For new subdivisions in the RM zone, a minimum lot size of 5,000 square 
feet normally applies, as well dimensional standards of 55’ x 90’. With respect to seetbacks, for 
residences that include a second-story element, the R-M zone requires a 20-foot front/rear yard 
setback, and side yard setback of 5-7 feet with 15 feet combined. In addition, garages must be 
setback 20 feet from the front of the home and the maximum building height is 30 feet. The 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is limited to 0.50 and a 60% lot coverage maximum applies. Open space 
requirements call for 75-225 square feet of private open space per units plus 300 square feet of 
common open space per unit. The project complies with garage setback, open space, lot cover-
age, and building height requirements, but lot size/dimension, FAR, setbacks, and the provision 
of common open space are not met. As a result, the applicant is requesting a Planned Develop-
ment Permit to allow variation from these standards (see discussion below). 
 
On-Site Parking. For multi-family development (including Planned Developments) the Devel-
opment Code requires 1.5 parking spaces per unit (including one covered space), plus an addi-
tional 25% for guest parking. Accordingly, 13 spaces are required for the project, including 7 
covered spaces and 6 guest parking spaces. Each of the units in the project is provided with a 
two-car garage and each unit would have apron parking within driveways, which amounts to 28 



 4 

parking spaces within the development. Overall, this exceeds greatly the amount required by the 
Development Code, although guest parking would be limited to the apron spaces. 
 
Internal Circulation: The units would all be accessed via a private drive running along the west 
edge of the property. The proposed 20-foot road width is consistent with the City’s private street 
standard and would allow for two-way traffic. The 20-foot width is also the minimum required 
by the Fire Department for emergency vehicle access (the street would be identified as a fire lane 
with parking prohibited). Based on a preliminary review, the turn-around appears to comply with 
the requirements of the Fire Department. 
 
Planned Development Findings: The project is proposed as a Planned Development to allow 
flexibility from the normal zoning standards. Specifically, none of the lots meet the minimum lot 
size (5,000 sq ft) or dimension requirements (55’ by 90’) for the R-M zone. In addition, four of 
the units exceed the FAR limit (0.50) and in many instances front, rear, and side yard setback 
requirements are also not met. As a Planned Development, a higher level of quality, design 
and/or site amenities is expected to justify variations from the normal standards and the project 
must relate appropriately to adjacent uses. This is a significant issue that the Planning Commis-
sion must consider in review of the application (the objectives and findings necessary for ap-
proval of a Planned Development Permit are attached for consideration). In staff’s view, the odd 
shape of the property provides some justification for making the findings, with the detached unit 
design of the project being a possible secondary consideration. That design approach, it should 
be noted, actually introduces additional constraints, as does the proposed program of all three-
bedroom units. Note: the applicant addresses the Planned Development findings as part of the 
project narrative (attached.) 
 
Inclusionary Units: Developments with five or more units must provide that at least 20% of the 
total number of units are affordable to households in the low and moderate-income categories 
(§19.44.020.B). Accordingly, a minimum of one unit within the development must be affordable 
at the moderate income level. The applicant has suggested that the unit on Lot 1 would be the 
designated affordable. 
 
Bicycle Parking:  Bicycle parking is normally required in all new attached multi-family devel-
opment, subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission. However, in attached 
Planned Developments, this requirement is often waived, especially when the units are designed 
with garages.  
 
Environmental Review 
 
The proposal is a discretionary project subject to the requirements of the California Environmen-
tal Quality Act (CEQA). However, because of its small size, it appears to qualify for a categori-
cal exemption as an infill development. 
 
Project Issues 
 
Setbacks in Relation to Adjacent Development: Because the proposal is an infill project it must 
be evaluated carefully in terms of how it relates to existing development on adjoining properties, 
especially considering that two-story homes are proposed. Compatibility with adjoining devel-
opment is also a key finding for approval of a Planned Development Permit. The issues areas 
identified by staff in this regard are as follows: 
 
 



 5 

 
 

• Rear yard setback of Lot 5. At the closest point of the unit, this setback is as small as 
5.2’, but it then opens up to 10’, and then 16’. This unit is highlighted because it abuts the 
private backyard of an adjoining duplex. However, the reduced setback is mitigated 
somewhat in that the building element that results in the smallest setback is quite small, is 
a single-story, and is offset from the main portion of the adjoining yard.   

 
• Rear yard setbacks of Lots 6 and 7. These units feature rear-yard setbacks of 14.6’ and 

14.9’. In this area, the project abuts two duplexes that front on Joaquin Drive. This rela-
tionship is some mitigated by the partial two-story design of the units, especially as the 
second-floor elements are setback an additional 3 to 7 feet. 

 
• Side yard setback of Lot 7. This setback, which adjoins a private backyard area serving a 

unit in Sonoma Commons, ranges from 6.3’ to 9’. This relationship is worsened by the 
fact that the building wall that forms the setback is a two-story element. While it might be 
possible to flip the layout of the unit on Lot 7 by placing the single-story garage element 
on the west, this might make it difficult to provide sufficient space to accommodate the 
apron parking. 

 
Apart from Lot 7, the setback relationships with Sonoma Common are generally quite good, due 
to the placement of the driveway on the west. In addition, while some of the setbacks relative to 
the adjoining Romberg property are limited, the current use of the site as warehouse/storage lim-
its concerns in this regard.  
 
Setbacks on West Spain Street: When an earlier version of the proposed development was re-
viewed by the Project Advisory Committee, the site plan called for the unit on Lot 1 to be ac-
cessed from a driveway that connected to West Spain Street, rather than the private drive. The 
City Engineer provided direction to re-orient the vehicle access for the unit to the private drive, 
as he felt that the second driveway cut would be redundant and would require backing out onto 
West Spain Street, which should be avoided as it is a busy collector street. The current site plan 
reflects this direction, but it introduces a new problem in that the unit on Lot 1 is set back only 9 
feet from West Spain Street and is oriented such that the two-story building element (a side ele-
vation) adjoins the street. This setback does not meet the normal standard and does not comply 
with the design guidelines for the Northwest Planning Area pertaining to West Spain Street. 
 
Guest Parking: As noted above, the total amount of parking within the project exceeds code re-
quirements. Regardless, as noted above, guest parking is limited to driveway aprons. The Plan-
ning Commission should provide direction on this issue. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The applicant is before the Planning Commission in a study session format to obtain feedback 
from the Commission and receive comments from the public at this time. In preparation for the 
submittal of an application, an archaeological survey of the property will be required. In addi-
tion, an arborist report will be prepared, subject to review by the City’s Tree Committee. (Note: 
in the course of demolishing and removing the buildings on the site, a large pine tree at the front 
of the site was also removed. Although this tree was not proposed for preservation as part of the 
project and while it is unlikely that it could have been successfully incorporated into the devel-
opment plan, its removal was contrary to the provisions of the City’s Tree Ordinance and the 
penalties called for in the Tree Ordinance will be assessed.) Ultimately, once a complete applica- 



Limited rear yard setback, 
backs onto duplex yard area.
Somewhat mitigated by 
1-story building element and
limited adjacency.

A 20’ rear-yard setback would
normally be required.

Limited side and rear yard 
setbacks, but units back 
onto warehouse property.

A fence height exception would likely be 
proposed in order to maximise private yard area.

9’- front yard setback,
with 2-story building wall

facing street.

2-story element with limited
setback overlooks rear-yard 

area of neighbors.



 7 

tion has been submitted and the review by the Tree Committee takes place, the project would 
come back to the Planning Commission for consideration of the Use Permit, Planned Develop-
ment Permit, and Tentative Map. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission provide direction to the applicant on the issues 
identified in the staff report, and any other issues raised through this review.  
 
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Planned Development Permit Regulations 
2. Comments of the Project Advisory Committee 
3. Project Narrative 
4. Site Plans/Elevations/Floor Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Caymus Capital (via email) 
 
 Doug Hilberman, Axia Architects (via email) 
 
 



Chapter 19.54 PLANNING PERMIT APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL Page 1 of3 

19.54.070 Planned development permit. 
A. Purpose. The planned development permit is intended to provide a process for 
allowing greater flexibility in site planning and design than afforded by the general 
development standards of this development code, to encourage more innovative and 
desirable projects, and efficient use of land than may be possible through strict 
application of conventional zoning regulations. In general, planned development permits 
are intended to address development under the following circumstances: 

1. Properties with unique, challenging, or valuable topographic or environmental 
features; 

2. lnfill properties that are oddly shaped, narrow, or otherwise difficult to design for 
using normal development standards; 

3. Site plans or building designs that are clearly responsive to the objectives of this 
development code, but which require variations from the normal development 
standards in order to achieve a useful innovation or a higher level of design quality 
than would otherwise be possible; 

4. Developments that include affordable housing, where departures from normal 
development standards are used to reduce development costs while maintaining 
design quality. 

A planned development permit shall not be granted solely for the purpose of maximizing 
development potential. 

B. Applicability. Planned development permits may be requested for any development 
project in any residential or commercial zoning district. Flexibility in the application of 
development standards may only be authorized with regard to the following requirements 
of Divisions II, Ill, and IV: 

1. Structure location and setbacks, yard areas, and open spaces; 

2. Parking and loading requirements, ingress and egress location; 

3. Fences, walls and screening; 

4. Landscaping requirements; 

5. Lot area and dimensions. 

The power to grant a planned development permit does not include allowed land uses or 
residential density regulations. 

C. Application Requirements. An application for a planned development shall be filed in 
compliance with SMC Application preparation and filing. It is the responsibility 
of the applicant to provide evidence in support of the findings required by subsection (F) 
of this section, Findings, Decision. 

http://www. codepublishing. com/ ca/Sonoma/html/Sonoma 19 /Sonoma1954 .html 6/8/2012 



Chapter 19.54 PLANNING PERMIT APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL Page 2 of3 

D. Project Review, Notice and Hearing. Each planned development application shall be 
reviewed by the city planner to ensure that the application is consistent with the purpose 
and intent of this section. The planning commission shall hold a public hearing in 
compliance with Chapter SMC, Public Hearings, and may approve, approve with 
conditions, or disapprove the planned development permit in compliance with this 
section. 

E. Objectives. In the course of reviewing an application for a planned development 
permit, the planning commission shall evaluate it in terms of the following objectives, as 
applicable: 

1. Integrating environmental features and other site characteristics into the 
development plan; 

2. Establishing appropriate relationships between the development and adjoining 
properties, in terms of setbacks, yard orientation, and building heights; 

3. Creating high quality common and/or private open space; 

4. Providing well-designed affordable units (if any); 

5. Appropriately relating building mass to lot size and to adjacent development; 

6. Providing or contributing toward variety in housing types, especially smaller, 
attached units, to the extent compatible with neighborhood conditions. 

Any application for a planned development permit shall be shall be considered in relation 
to these objectives, the development standards and design guidelines of this 
development code, other applicable ordinances of the city, and applicable General Plan 
policies. 

F. Findings, Decision. Following a public hearing, the planning commission may approve, 
approve subject to conditions, or disapprove the planned development permit. The 
planning commission shall record the decision and the findings upon which the decision 
is based. The planning commission may approve a planned development permit 
application with or without conditions, only if the planning commission finds that: 

1. The planned development permit is consistent with the General Plan, any 
applicable specific plan, and the intent and objectives of this section; 

2. The design of the development is consistent with the intent of applicable 
regulations and design guidelines of the development code; 

3. The various use and development elements of the planned development relate to 
one another in such a way as to justify exceptions to the normal standards of the 
development code; 

4. The design flexibility allowed by the planned development permit has been used 
to creatively address identified physical and environmental constraints; and 

http://www. codepublishing. com/ ca/Sonoma/html/Sonoma 19/Sonoma1954.html 6/8/2012 



Chapter 19.54 PLANNING PERMIT APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL Page 3 of3 

5. The proposed development will be well-integrated into its setting, will relate 
appropriately to adjacent uses, and will retain desirable natural features of the site 
and the surrounding area. 

G. Expiration. A planned development permit shall be exercised within one year from the 
date of approval or the permit shall become void, unless an extension is approved in 
compliance with Chapter SMC, Permit Implementation, Time Limits, Extensions. 
(Ord. 2003-02 § 3, 2003). 

http://www. codepub lishing. com/ ca/Sonoma/html/Sonoma 19 /Sonoma 19 54 .html 6/8/2012 



Memo 

DATE: April17, 2014 

TO: Doug Hilberman and Ed Routhier 

FROM: Wendy Atkins, Associate Planner, City of Sonoma 

SUBJECT: Project Advisory Committee- Review of 800 West Spain Street Proposal 

The Project Advisory Committee (PAC) met on April 17, 2014 to review the seven-unit Planned 
Development proposed at 800 West Spain Street. The PAC is comprised of City Staff 
representing the different City departments. The following City Staff were in attendance at the 
meeting: Dan Takasugi, Public Works Director/City Engineer; Dean Merrill, Streets Supervisor; 
Allen Jones, Fire Captain; Wayne Wirick, Building Official; Joe Burroughs, Plans Examiner; 
Chris Pegg, Stormwater Compliance; David Goodison, Planning Director; Rob Gjestland, Senior 
Planner; Wendy Atkins, Associate Planner. In review of the proposal, members of the committee 
offered the following comments: 

Engineering, Stormwater: 
• Provided list ofPublic Works requirements. 
• An easement agreement shall be required for the public water main to connect to the 

hydrant. 
• Questioned how the driveway will be paved: asphalt concrete with landscaped strip. 
• Water main shall provide an 8" line to the hydrant. 
• Does not support separate driveway approach off of West Spain Street 
• Requested a 6' flare on curb cut (concerned that street parking could encroach onto 

driveway). 
• Water main front-foot charge-contact the Robin Evans at (707) 933-2205. 
• Stormwater requirements are on the Public Works checklist. 
• SUSMP requirements will apply to this project. 
• Requested engineering details where sewer and stormwater line cross. 
• SUSMP requirements will be replaced with City requirements effective 2015. 
• Encourage site layout consideration early on in the process. 
• Project may require underground storm water retention. 
• A Sewer Capacity Analysis may be required. Contact Vic Swift at the Sonoma County 

Water Agency at 707-547-1975. 
• Lot 1 will have the maintenance responsibility for the entire property unless an HOA is 

established. An HOA would also be a good mechanism to provide for storm water 
maintenance. 



Building: 
• Concerned with setbacks on lot 7-may limit percentage ofbuilding openings. 
• Concerned with area in front of garage on lot 4-Planning Commission will need to 

approve driveway apron area if it is less than 20'. Don't want to temp folks to park in an 
area when adequate space is not provided. 

• CALGreen requirements apply-bring on specialists early in the process. 
• New energy standards will go into effect on July 1, 2014. 
e Contact PRMD for sewer fees and get a water fee estimate from the City of Sonoma. 
e Work with the Sonoma County Health Department to abandon any wells on the site. 
• Water meters will be required in front of each lot. 
e Lot 6 has a 3' setback ad a 12" projection for the roof-this may need to be reduced. 
• Lot 5 has a maximum 18" projection requiring a one-hour rating on the overhang. 
• ADA accessibility is required at the sidewalk and driveway approach. 
• Noted a lack of guest parking. 

Fire 
e Fire lane access will be required to be in place early in construction. 
• Each house shall provide fire sprinklers and meet the fire requirements. 
• Confirm hydrant location with Alan Jones. 

Police 
• Concerned with density-trying to squeeze too many units on a small lot 
• Foresee resident-visitor parking issues. 
• Concerned with noise issues. 
• May trigger a noticeable increase in traffic congestion. 

Planning 
• An archaeological study will be commissioned by the City and paid for by the applicant. 
• An arborist report will be commissioned by the City and paid for by the applicant. 
• Encouraged neighbor outreach early in the process. 
• Most likely the project will be categorically exempt from CEQA. 
• A Planning Commission Study Session shall be required prior to moving forward with a 

PUD application. 
• Confirm with the Public Works Director if a 20' wide driveway is sufficient (attached 

section 19.48.100, which states that nearest edge of a driveway apron or curb return shall 
be at least five feet from the nearest property line). 

• Provide open space calculations on revised plans. 
• Provide FAR and coverage calculations on revised plans. 
• Indicate all off-street parking on revised plans. 
• Design Review and Historic Preservation review shall include architectural, landscape, 

and outdoor lighting. 
• Lot 1 will be challenging to provide private yard space. 
• Address Planned Development findings in project narrative: 



Findings, Decision. Following a public hearing, the planning commission may approve, 
approve subject to conditions, or disapprove the planned development permit. The 
planning commission shall record the decision and the findings upon which the decision is 
based. The planning commission may approve a planned development permit application 
with or without conditions, only if the planning commission finds that: 

1. The planned development permit is consistent with the General Plan, any applicable 
specific plan, and the intent and objectives of this section; 

2. The design of the development is consistent with the intent of applicable regulations 
and design guidelines of the development code; 

3. The various use and development elements of the planned development relate to one 
another in such a way as to justify exceptions to the normal standards of the development 
code; 

4. The design flexibility allowed by the planned development permit has been used to 
creatively address identified physical and environmental constraints; and 

5. The proposed development will be well-integrated into its setting, will relate 
appropriately to adjacent uses, and will retain desirable natural features of the site and the 
surrounding area. 



800 WEST SPAIN STREET SUBDIVISION PROJECT 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT- PROJECT SUMMARY 
May 19,2014 
AXIA Architects 

Project Name 

APN 

Location 

Area 

Current Zoning 

Current General Plan 
Designation 

Total Allowable Units 

Total Proposed Units 

Proposal 

Typical Lot Size 

FAR 

Maximum Height 

Garbage Collection 

Project Vision Statement 

800 West Spain Street Development 

127-204-022 

800 West Spain Street 
North side of West Spain Street just west of intersection 
with 5th Street. 

Approximately 0.86 acres 

R-M: Medium Density Residential 

Medium Density Residential 

6- 9 Units based on R-M Zone 

7 Units 

Planned Development consisting of 7 single family 
residential units 

Range from about 3600 SF- 4500 SF. 

See Site Plan Drawing 

30 feet 

Each unit has a minimum five foot wide side yard next 
to the garage. It is envisioned that the utility meters and 
garbage cans will occur in this location at each house. 

The focus of this project is to develop a design that creates 
a sense of neighborhood with a nod to its agricultural roots, 
while acknowledging the economics of the cmTent housing 
market. This design focuses on providing "market-rate 
affordable" housing sized large enough for a medium-sized 
family. The positioning of the houses and the street is 
designed to maximize privacy with neighbors and has 
received positive feedback when presented at a 
neighborhood meeting in March. 

1 Q 2014 



Rationale for Use of 
Planned Development 

The project pays homage to the original fann stmctures that 
existed on site. The nan·ow private drive is envisioned with 
a quaintness to encourage a mix of uses including 
pedestrian and bike activities. The land is set up for small 
lot private ownership, designed to foster variety in the 
plantings and visual landscape that stems from individual 
ownership. With the close proximity of the site to parks, 
the design focuses on privately owned, using front yards, 
backyards, and the street to provide variety of fmums for 
exterior activities. The proximity to the Sonoma Square 
and local merchants makes this an optimal pedestrian 
oriented community. 

See Attached Planned Development Nanative 



PLANNED DEVELOPMENT NARRATIVE FOR 800 WEST SPAIN ST. 
05.19.14 

We propose utilizing the Planned Development as a tool to provide greater flexibility in 
the site planning to allow for a more innovative project and efficient use ofthe land than 
may be possible through the strict application of the conventional zoning regulation. We 
believe that providing single family detached market rate workforce housing within close 
vicinity of Sonoma's downtown square is both responsive to the objectives of the 
Development Code and Smm1 Growth development principles. 

I. CIRCUMSTANCES FOR WHICH THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 
ARE INTENDED TO ADDRESS: 

UTILIZATION TO ADDRESS OBJECTIVES OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
CODE IN ORDER TO ACHIEVE A HIGHER LEVEL OF DESIGN QUALITY 

Our prope11y is unique in its shape, its smm1 growth infill qualities given its 
proximity to downtown, and its proximity to nearby parks and bike lanes. The 
Development Code acknowledges the vast majority ofNmthern Planning Area 
dwellings are single family. Our design acknowledges the adjacent densities, and 
the intent of the R-M zone, while achieving the design and amenity qualities 
available in single family residences. The residences acknowledge the fmmhouse 
roots and an emphasis on detail and quality materials. In synch with the desires of 
the Nmthwest Planning Area, this will offer variety in the features and the 
architectural character of the area. 

DEPARTURE FROM NORMAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TO 
REDUCE DEVELOPMENT COSTS OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Very few units of Affordable Housing in our region are 3 bedroom 2-112 
bathroom single family detached homes on private lots. The design achieves a 
balance that includes the positive attributes of private single family ownership of 
homes while maintaining affordability through distributing land, infrastmcture, 
and Affordable Housing costs over a greater number of market rate units. 
Through relief from setback requirements, lot size, and lot coverage the project 
offers the City a higher quality Affordable Housing stock. 

II. REQUESTED FLEXIBILITY IN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

1. Reduced Setbacks: The majority of units maintain a setback from the adjacent 
neighboring parcels that meets the city standards. The design requests relief 
from setbacks to allow the project to accommodate the unusual "dog leg'' offset 
that occurs in the parcel and to provide density appropriate to the R-M zone. 

2. Reduced Open Spaces: The project exceeds the minimum requirements for 
individual residential unit private space. Our focus was to provide private lots 
with private space for each family. The project is close to the Sonoma Bike Path, 



the Vallejo Home State Park, and the Sonoma downtown square for common 
recreation. 

3. Reduced Lot Area, FAR, and Dimensions: The project requests relief from the 
minimum lot area, FAR, and dimensions. To provide detached housing, the 
required infrastmcture, and about an average number of units allowed by the 
Residential-Medium Density zoning, relief from the lot area is necessary. 

III. ANALYSIS: 
I. THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 

GENERAL PLAN, AND APPLICABLE SPECIFIC PLAN, AND THE INTENT 
AND OBJECTIVES OF THIS SECTION. 

The Residential-Medium Density designation in the City of Sonoma's Northwest 
Planning Area requires between 6 and 9 units on this parcel. The project proposes 
7 single family detached residential units which is consistent with the General 
Plan and the Applicable Specific Plan. Single-Family Dwellings are a use 
pennitted in an R-M zone (Table 1-2, Development Code, Community Design). 
In the Nm1hwest Planning Area Existing Conditions Section of The City's 
Development Code, the Section makes generalized reference to the existing 
"condominiums and P.U.D's along West Spain Street." 

The project helps the City achieve the objectives of providing infill residential 
development near downtown core services. This supports a pedestrian oriented 
enviromnent and saves the City infrastmcture costs through efficiencies towards 
the consolidation geographically of its suppm1 services. 

2. THE DESIGN OF THE DEVELOPMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
INTENT OF APPLICABLE REGULATIONS AND DESIGN GUIDELINES OF 
THE DEVELOPMENT CODE. 

The applicable regulations of the Development Code have designated a density 
through R-M zoning that is similar to the density of some adjacent parcels. We 
believe this desired density is due to proximity to the downtown center. The 
design of the homes is consistent with the maximum height requirements. 
Screening and buffering will be provided, as intended by the Development Code, 
to the adjacent neighbors through the design of a perimeter fence and the 
increased perimeter landscaping. 

3. THE VARIOUS USE AND DEVELOPMENT ELEMENTS OF THE PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT RELATE TO ONE ANOTHER IN SUCH AWAY AS TO 
JUSTIFY EXCEPTIONS TO THE NORMAL STANDARDS OF THE 
DEVELOPMENT CODE 

The design approaches medium density residential in a manner consistent with 
other single family dwelling planned developments within the City of Sonoma. 
Due to the unusual "dog leg" in the parcel, the design can only achieve the 



quantity of single family detached dwellings pennitted in an R-M zone through 
relief from the nonnal standards. We believe this fmm of housing is more 
desirable to the cuiTent market demand and achieves a middle ground between the 
denser adjacent apmiments and the single family residential to the north. 

4. THE DESIGN FLEXIBILITY ALLOWED BY THE PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT HAS BEEN USED TO CREATIVELY ADDRESS 
IDENTIFIED PHYSICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINTS 

The strongest natural features of the site are the trees around the perimeter of the 
prope1iy. The setbacks around the perimeter of the prope1iy allow the majority of 
perimeter trees to be preserved. 

5. THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WILL BE WELL-INTEGRATED INTO 
ITS SETTING, WILL RELATE APPROPRIATELY TO ADJACENT USES, 
AND WILL RETAIN DESIRABLE NATURAL FEATURES OF THE SITE 
AND THE SURROUNDING AREA 

The prope1iy is unique in its size, shape, and proximity to the central downtown 
core. The medium density residential zoning for the site can be achieved without 
variances or PD zoning through multi-level apmiments or condominiums. Based 
on the neighborhood meeting, these building types are not desired. We believe 
that the neighborhood and downtown residential housing stock would benefit 
from variety that is catered to young families. These families would benefit from 
having individual yards, three bedrooms, two baths, and pedestrian access to the 
downtown businesses and services. These amenities are the most sought after in 
the residential real estate market. The reduced lot size allows the developer to 
increase the quality level of constmction, incorporate Affordable Housing, while 
maintaining an affordable price point in the market. The development saves the 
majority of the perimeter trees and proposes to supplement these with additional 
screening. Collectively, we believe that the Planned Development allows us to 
provide superior design quality with an innovative housing stock to benefit the 
downtown core of the City of Sonoma. 



©

2125-245(707)XAF1546-245)707LET (
10459AC,ASORATNAS,TEERTSDRH5 IT1

SREENIGNLIVIC E STCETIHCREPACSDNA ALSROYEVRUDNA SLSRENNALNAB PRU



©

2125-245(707)XAF1546-245)707LET (
10459AC,ASORATNAS,TEERTSDRH5 IT1

SREENIGNLIVIC E STCETIHCREPACSDNA ALSROYEVRUDNA SLSRENNALNAB PRU



© ●

2125-245(707)XAF1546-245)707LET (
10459AC,ASORATNAS,TEERTSDRH5 IT1

SREENIGNLIVIC E STCETIHCREPACSDNA ALSROYEVRUDNA SLSRENNALNAB PRU



CAYMUS 
CAPITAL 

W. SPAIN ST. DEVELOPMENT 
NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT MAP 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA, CALIFORNIA 

(N.T.S.) 

MAY 19, 2014 

architects 



CAYMUS 
CAPITAL 

I 
I 

82 

--
A 

-

A 

--
A 

- a 

-- ----- -- - - - - - -

----- - - -- - --
WEST SPAIN STREET 

I 

8 

--

EXISTING PROPERTY BOUNDARY 

ASSUMED BACK OF SIDEWALK 

-- --- - - - - -

,...-------

A 

- -

I 

I __ ; 
---

/ ----
/ --

• 0 . 
I "' 
I 

-

I 
• 

I ~ 

-

~ . 
f6 

I 
I 

-- - -----

/ ------

W. SPAIN ST. DEVELOPMENT 
SITE PLAN CONCEPT 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA, CALIFORNIA 

0' 10' 30' so· 

MAY 19, 2014 

a r c h • 
I t e c t s 



WEST SPAIN ST. 

/ 

/ 

UNIT A 

REAR SITE ELEVATION- LOOKING WEST 

88 

8 88 
UNITB 

FRONT SITE ELEVATION - LOOKING EAST 

' ' 
UNIT A 

888l 

UNIT A 

/ 
/ 

UNIT A 

UNIT B2 

UNIT B2 

' ' 
/ 

/ 

UNIT A 

888I 1888 

UNIT A UNIT A 

W. SPAIN ST. DEVELOPMENT 
CAYMUS 
CAPITAL STREETSCAPES 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA, CALIFORNIA 

o:rno:rn 

•• 

s 
E8 

888 
UNITB 

888l 

UNIT A 

o· 4' 12· 36' 

MAY 19, 2014 

WEST SPAIN ST. 

architects 



KITCHEN

116

LIVING

118

GARAGE

113

MASTER BEDROOM

114

BATH

115

DINING

117

BATH

120

LEVEL ONE
AREA: 960 SF

1

1

2 4 5

53

AA

B

C

E

F

GG
7' - 6 1/2"13' - 5"18' - 0 1/2"

39' - 0"

19
' -

 1
1"

20
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

8'
 - 

0"

48
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

37
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

6'
 - 

0"
4'

 - 
11

"

CLOSET

124

0' 2' 6' 12'

BEDROOM

119

W

D
LAUNDRY

121

BEDROOM

122
BATH

123

11' - 6"

9'
 - 

6"

14' - 1"

12
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

LEVEL ONE
AREA: 570 SF

1

1

3

3

A

D

18' - 5 1/2"

33
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

3' - 5"

CALIFORNIA

CONCEPT A
FLOOR PLAN 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA,

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
1 LEVEL ONE FLOOR PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
2 LEVEL TWO FLOOR PLAN TOTAL AREA: 1,530 SF

MAY 19, 2014



AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

AFF27' - 0"
T.O. ROOF

12
4

A B C D E F G

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

AFF27' - 0"
T.O. ROOF

1245 3

12

9

12

8

12

8

12

9

12

8

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

AFF27' - 0"
T.O. ROOF

1 2 4 53

12

9

12

8

12

9

12

8

0' 2' 6' 12'

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

AFF27' - 0"
T.O. ROOF

12
4

ABCDEFG

12
4

CALIFORNIA

CONCEPT A
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA,

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
1 CONCEPT A - RIGHT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
2 CONCEPT A - REAR ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
3 CONCEPT A - FRONT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
4 CONCEPT A - LEFT ELEVATION

MAY 19, 2014



UP

LIVING / DINING

103

KITCHEN

102

MASTER BEDROOM

106

BATH

105

BATH

104

CLOSET

107

5

54

21

1

AA

B

C

E

FF

3

LEVEL ONE
AREA: 850 SF

GARAGE

113

6

6

0' 2' 6' 12'

49' - 6 1/2"

12' - 6" 16' - 6" 20' - 6 1/2"

35
' -

 6
"

32
' -

 1
 3

/4
"

6'
 - 

6"
8'

 - 
0"

21
' -

 0
"

15' - 1 1/2" 2' - 10 1/2" 11' - 0"

29' - 0" 20' - 6 1/2"

DN

W

D

BEDROOM

108

BEDROOM

109

OFFICE

110
LAUNDRY

111

BATH

112

5

5

1

1

BB

EE

3

3

D

LEVEL TWO
AREA: 630 SF

14' - 1 1/2"

9'
 - 

11
"

9'
 - 

11
"

29' - 0"

15' - 1 1/2" 13' - 10 1/2"

25
' -

 7
 3

/4
"

21
' -

 1
 1

/2
"

4'
 - 

6 
1/

4"

CALIFORNIA

CONCEPT B
FLOOR PLAN 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA,

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
1 LEVEL ONE FLOOR PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
2 LEVEL TWO FLOOR PLAN TOTAL AREA: 1,480 SF

MAY 19, 2014



AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

12
7

12
7

12
4

A B C E F

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

D

12
7

12
7

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

5 4 2 13

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

6

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

5421 3

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

6

0' 2' 6' 12'

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

12
7

12
7

12
4

12
4

ABCEF

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

D

CALIFORNIA

CONCEPT B
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA,

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
4 CONCEPT B - RIGHT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
1 CONCEPT B - REAR ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
2 CONCEPT B - FRONT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
3 CONCEPT B - LEFT ELEVATION

MAY 19, 2014



GARAGE

101

29' - 0"

UP

LIVING / DINING

103

KITCHEN

102

MASTER BEDROOM

106

BATH

105

BATH

104

CLOSET

107

6

65

32

2

1

1

B

C

D

F

GG

35
' -

 6
"

6'
 - 

6"
29

' -
 0

"

49' - 6 1/2"

4

LEVEL ONE
AREA: 850 SF

0' 2' 6' 12'

12' - 2" 16' - 10"

A

21
' -

 0
"

19
' -

 1
0"

3'
 - 

4 
1/

4"

20' - 6 1/2" 15' - 1 1/2" 2' - 10 1/2" 11' - 0"

18' - 0" 11' - 0"

44
' -

 2
 1

/4
"

DN

W

D

BEDROOM

108

BEDROOM

109

OFFICE

110
LAUNDRY

111

BATH

112

6

6

2

2

CC

F

4

4

15' - 1 1/2" 13' - 10 1/2"
29' - 0"

E

21
' -

 1
 1

/2
"

4'
 - 

6 
1/

4"

25
' -

 7
 3

/4
"

LEVEL TWO
AREA: 630 SF

14' - 1 1/2"

9'
 - 

11
"

9'
 - 

11
"

CALIFORNIA

CONCEPT B-2
FLOOR PLAN 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA,

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
1 LEVEL ONE FLOOR PLAN

 1/4" = 1'-0"A2.1
2 LEVEL TWO FLOOR PLAN TOTAL AREA: 1,480 SF

MAY 19, 2014



AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

12
7

12
7

12
4 12

4

B C D F G

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

EA

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

6 5 3 2 14

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

65321 4

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

0' 2' 6' 12'

AFF0"
FIRST FLOOR

AFF10' - 0"
SECOND FLOOR

AFF19' - 0"
TOP PLATE

12
7

12
7

12
7

12
4

BCDFG

AFF27' - 6"
T.O. ROOF

E

12
7

A

CALIFORNIA

CONCEPT B-2
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 800 WEST SPAIN STREET SONOMA,

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
4 CONCEPT B - RIGHT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
1 CONCEPT B - REAR ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
2 CONCEPT B - FRONT ELEVATION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A3.1
3 CONCEPT B - LEFT ELEVATION

MAY 19, 2014


	6_12_14 PC Packet Commissioners
	06-12-14
	5_8_2014 Draft_ Minutes
	May 8, 2014
	Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma, CA
	DRAFT MINUTES
	COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: No Public Comments
	Chair Tippell opened the item to public comment.
	Chair Tippell closed the item to public comment.
	Comm. Edwards places a high value on trees, even those in private yards, as views of trees have value to the neighborhood and the community.
	Comm. Howarth noted that in the case of trees in residential yards, it is the property owner’s responsibility to maintain them and they should have some rights with respect to their removal.
	Chair Tippell opened the item to public comment.
	Fred Allebach, resident, is disappointed that the City has proposed to cut down the large pine trees adjoining the Marcy House.
	Patricia Cullinan, resident and contractor, is opposed to removing trees prematurely before developments are approved.
	Pat Pulvirenti, resident, supports this discussion and is hopeful it will result in an improvement to the Tree ordinance. She confirmed with Planning Director Goodison that the large tree at Brockman Lane and Engler Street is preserved with an on-goin...
	Chair Tippell closed the item to public comment.
	Comm. Felder agreed that he would like to see this addressed in conditions of approval project approval going forward.
	Comm. Willers noted that such measures would still allow a property owner to apply for the removal of a private tree through the City’s Tree Committee, but he would like to see on-going preservation be the default requirement.
	Comm. Tippell recognized that trees in residential developments are a sensitive issue. He is a proponent of preserving as many trees as possible since they benefit the future value of the home and enhance the community. However, he noted that not ever...
	Planning Director Goodison stated that this issue will be addressed moving forward in project conditions, when applicable, and that the Commission can evaluate it at that time.
	In discussing the matter, the Planning Commission expressed support for the suggestions made for designating trees for preservation and mitigation measures.

	1_FourthE389-Zuchinni Race
	FourthE389-ZucchiniRace2014-TUP
	City of Sonoma Planning Commission
	Surrounding
	Temporary Use Permit Findings

	FourthE389-Vicinity Map
	SKMBT_C55014060507390
	SKMBT_C55014060507400

	2_WSpain222-Larbre-Fence
	WSpain222-Larbre-Fence Height Exception
	City of Sonoma Planning Commission
	Surrounding
	Findings for an Exception to the Fence Height Standards
	DRAFT

	WSpain222-Vicinity Map
	SKMBT_C55014060507340
	SKMBT_C55014060507341
	SKMBT_C55014060507350

	3_WSpain162-Vacation Rentals
	WSpain162-Tillem-Vacation Rentals
	City of Sonoma Planning Commission
	The proposed change of use and associated building improvements/upgrades would increase the value of the property. Additional income derived from the proposed use would increase the likelihood that the historic structure would continue to be maintaine...
	Attachments
	a. Sonoma Valley Unified School District [For school impact fees]

	WSpain162-Vicinity Map
	SKMBT_C55014060514270
	SKMBT_C55014060514280
	Weyl Report

	Memo Item 4

	4_800 West Spain Study Session

